IN THE UNI TED STATES COURT OF APPEALS
FOR THE FI FTH Cl RCU T

No. 01-40838
Summary Cal endar

UNI TED STATES OF AMERI CA,
Pl ai ntiff-Appellee,
vVer sus
ESMERALDA RUI Z,

Def endant - Appel | ant.

Appeal fromthe United States District Court
for the Southern District of Texas
USDC No. M 01-CR-144-1

Decenber 23, 2002
Before DAVIS, JONES and DENNI'S, G rcuit Judges.

PER CURI AM *

Esneralda Ruiz appeals her sentence followng her
guilty-plea conviction for inporting marijuana in violation of 21
U S.C 88 952(a), 960(a)(1l), 960(b)(3) and 18 U.S.C. & 2. Ruiz
argues that the district court erred when it denied a U S S G
8 3E1.1 acceptance of responsibility reduction, that the Governnent
breached the plea agreenent when it opposed the acceptance of

responsibility reduction, and that the district court erred when it

"Pursuant to 5THCGR R 47.5, the court has determ ned that
this opi nion should not be published and is not precedent except
under the limted circunstances set forth in 5THCQR R 47.5. 4.
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deni ed a m ni mal participant reduction pursuant to U. S.S. G § 3Bl. 2.

To qualify for an acceptance of responsibility reduction
pursuant to U S.S.G 8 3El.1, Ruiz nust prove that she “clearly
denonstrate[d] acceptance of responsibility for her offense.”
US S G § 3E1 1. This court reviews the sentencing court’s
determ nation of acceptance of responsibility wth greater

def erence than under the clearly erroneous standard. United States

v. Chapa-Grza, 62 F.3d 118, 122 (5th Cr. 1995). Because Ruiz did

not plead guilty until after a jury was selected, and Ruiz
repeatedly deni ed the conduct conprising the offense, the district
court did not clearly err in denying Ruiz an acceptance of

responsibility reduction. See United States v. Nguyen, 190 F. 3d

656, 659-60 (5th Cr. 1999), and United States v. D az, 39 F. 3d
568, 570-72 (5th Gr. 1994).

Rui z al so argues that the Governnent breached the plea
agreenent by opposing an acceptance of responsibility reduction.

Ruiz failed to object on this basis at sentencing. Therefore, this

issue is reviewed for plain error. See United States v. Reeves,
255 F. 3d 208, 210 (5th Gr. 2001). The plea agreenent specified
that the Governnent agreed to nmake a recomendation in favor of an
acceptance of responsibility reduction only if Ruiz qualified for
t he reduction under the Cuidelines. Ruiz has not denonstrated that
she was entitled to an acceptance of responsibility reduction under
t he Cuidelines. Therefore, Ruiz has not denonstrated “the

underlying facts that establish the breach by a preponderance of
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the evidence.” See United States v. Cantu, 185 F.3d 298, 304-05

(5th Gr. 1999) (citation omtted). Rui z al so argues that she
was nerely recruited as a courier for a single snuggling
transaction and argues, therefore, that the trial court commtted
error in failing to find her a mnimal participant and grant a
four-level reduction in her offense |evel pursuant to U S S G
8§ 3B1.2. This court reviews for clear error the sentencing court’s
determ nation that a defendant did not play a mnor or mninmal role

inthe offense. United States v. Zuniga, 18 F.3d 1254, 1261 (5th

Cir. 1994). Ruiz does not provide record references that establish
that she was the “least cul pable” of those in a group. Because
Rui z bears the burden of denonstrating that she is a mnim
participant in the offense, and because Ruiz has set forth nothing
nmore than a sel f-serving account of her role, which is unsupported
by record evidence, the district court did not clearly err when it
found Ruiz to be a mnor participant, but not a mninma

participant, in the offense. See Zuniga, 18 F.3d at 1261, and

United States v. Buenrostro, 868 F.2d 135, 138 (5th GCr. 1989).

Based on the foregoing, the sentence is AFFI RVED



